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Question Response 

Received before May 2, 2017 

1 There appears to be substantial additional 
development capacity within the maximum 
building envelope limitations of the Design for 
Development (D4D) guidelines beyond what 
will be needed for the OCII program for a 100-
120 supportive housing units and supportive 
services. Is OCII interested in having applicants 
provide more than 120 units? Is there a 
maximum number of supportive housing units 
that would be desired by OCII? Does OCII’s 
vision for maximum number of units differ 
from HSH, MOHCD, or CAC’s vision?   

The RFP calls for a “maximum number of units”. 
That said, OCII does understand that there is 
capacity for a large number of units on the site, 
well beyond the 120 units at recent supportive 
housing projects such as Richardson Apartments 
and Rene Cazanave Apartments. OCII suggests 
that Applicants propose a number of units that 
allows for excellent service provision to residents 
and minimizes development costs. Please take 
care to explain the rationale for the number of 
units proposed.  

2 What percentage of the units should be larger 
studios?  

This percentage is flexible and should be 
determined by Applicants. For reference, 
approximately 10% of units at Rene Cazenave 
Apartments are one-bedrooms, constructed with 
similar needs in mind.    

3 Can OCII please clarify the composition of 
potential households – i.e. will couples 
without children be considered for a studio? 
What is the allowable occupancy of a studio 
with LOSP funding?  

LOSP defers to the Marketing and Tenant 
Selection Plan established between OCII and the 
development team. OCII policy requires that 
units set aside for formerly homeless persons 
must be treated as any other affordable unit 
with regard to capacity. Tenants will be referred 
to the property by HSH.  
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4 In Section IIIA 9 - CEQA/NEPA - "The selected 
team will work with the Department of Public 
Health, the San Francisco Regional Water 
Quality Control Board, the Bay Area Air Quality 
Management District, and OCII staff to ensure 
proper CEQA coverage and that the mitigation 
monitoring measures for Block 9 are 
appropriately documented and implemented. 
The selected applicant will be responsible for 
securing environmental review and approval 
under the National Environmental Protection 
Act (NEPA), if necessary." Can OCII please 
provide guidance on cost assumptions in the 
development budget as it relates to the RFP 
guidance above?  

NEPA - There should be no need for NEPA review 
unless the Applicant proposes to utilize federal 
funds.  

CEQA - The EIR describes specific mitigation 
measures. Include estimates for those measures 
that are relevant to the site from the Mitigation 
Monitoring and Reporting Program (MMRP).  

 

5 In Section IIIB – the second paragraph notes 
that Bridgeview Way may be used for local 
vehicular and/or pedestrian access. However, 
the last sentence of this same paragraph 
states that Bridgeview Way “should 
contemplate a design” for pedestrians only. 
Does OCII have a preference for pedestrian-
only versus low-speed vehicular traffic? What 
is the CAC’s position on this?  

The Design for Development allows for both 
pedestrian and vehicular uses on Bridgeview 
Way. Vehicles are allowed on Bridgeview Way to 
the south. Based on the planned Mission Rock 
development parking garage, to be located on 
Mission Rock Boulevard and other event traffic 
considerations, OCII prefers that Bridgeview Way 
be developed as a pedestrian pathway, along 
with vehicular access for emergency vehicles. 
The CAC was informed of this prior to the release 
of the RFP but have not discussed it in detail.  

6 In Section IIIB – Regarding OCII’s guidance on 
the Block 9 Ground Lease in paragraph five – 
the California Tax Credit Allocation Committee 
(TCAC) has a new Lease Rider and Estoppel 
Agreement requirement prior to issuing a 
form 8609 (Low-Income Housing Credit 
Allocation and Certification) after project 
completion and lease-up. Developers are 
pushing back against TCAC’s new requirement 
but there is no resolution yet. This is causing 
major delays in procuring 8609s for current 
projects with a Ground Lease. MOHCDs 
attorney are aware of this situation, but it is 
unclear if OCII is also aware. Can OCII please 
provide further guidance, if available?  

OCII is aware of the TCAC lease rider. We did 
successfully negotiate a lease rider based on the 
earlier version. OCII staff/attorneys are currently 
reviewing the revised version dated May 3, 2017. 
Please continue to proceed under the 
assumption of a long term ground lease.  
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7 In Section IIIC – Soils Conditions, the depth of 
the fill and Bay Mud on site is described. While 
that information is helpful, it is insufficient to 
predict the exact depth of a deep foundation 
system. Since the exact depth of the 
foundation can have a significant impact on 
the cost of construction, can OCII please 
provide a reasonable foundation depth 
assumption based on nearby sites for all 
applicants to assume? Otherwise, applicants 
may be tempted to engage in “wishful” 
thinking regarding the foundation costs.  

Based on other Mission Bay South projects, 
please assume 100 to 150 feet for pilings. Please 
clearly state your assumption in your response.  

 

8 In Section IIIC – Soils Conditions, the existing 
soils conditions are described. Due to the 
amount of uncompacted fill on site and 
currently undeveloped land and the bay to the 
northeast, should the applicants include 
potential costs for soil improvements to 
mitigate the potential impacts of lateral 
spreading? It is our understanding that other 
nearby sites in Mission Bay have needed to 
include soil improvement in addition to their 
load bearing foundation system.  

Yes, please include costs for soil improvement 
(all other sites in Mission Bay South have needed 
this).  

 

9 In Section IIIC – If construction of the project 
will result in off-haul of excess existing soil, 
what disposal method classification should the 
applicants assume? The assumptions for 
hazardous soil can have a significant impact on 
the estimated construction cost.  

Yes, please assume that off-haul of excess 
existing soil will be needed. Assume Class I 
(worst case scenario).  

 

10 In Section IVA – OCII requirements include a 
“maximum number of furnished studio 
apartments”. Should we use the MOHCD 
policy on budgeting for unit furniture?  

 

Yes, please use MOHCD Underwriting Guidelines 
for furniture budgeting - $2,500/unit + $650/unit 
for soft goods.   
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11 In Section IVB – How do we determine the 
cost associated with the ongoing maintenance 
of Bridgeview Way, when is that cost expected 
to be split with Block 9a, and what will be each 
parcel’s share of the cost? Can we expect 
reimbursement for development costs from 
Block 9a, and when? Can we capitalize Block 
9a's share of the operating costs in the 
development budget until that parcel is ready 
to be developed?  

Development costs for Bridgeview Way will not 
be shared with Block 9a. The Block 9 
development budget should include the full cost 
for design and construction of Bridgeview Way. 
Operating/maintenance expenses will be split in 
half between Block 9 and Block 9a once Block 9a 
is complete. Assume that Block 9 will bear these 
costs alone for the first two years of operation.  

12 In Section IVB – the RFP states that case 
management should be provided at a 1:20 
staffing ratio. However, Section IVD 1 e directs 
bidders to propose a staffing ratio and justify 
it. Should we use the 1:20 ratio or propose our 
own? 

The RFP requests a 1:20 ratio. If an Applicant 
proposes a different ratio or additional staffing, 
please provide justification in the proposal. 
Clearly describe the cost and benefit of the 
suggested staffing pattern.   

13 In Section IVB – Does the 1:20 staffing ratio for 
support services include supervisory and/or 
administrative support staff? 

The 1:20 ratio does not include supervisory staff. 
The supervisor should not carry a case load 
unless there is a specific administrative or clinical 
need to provide this service on a short-term 
basis.  

14 In Section IVB – Can we use Medi-Cal billing 
for basic services? What other sources of 
supplemental funding can we use? Case 
management is covered under Drug Medi-Cal 
with the new waiver. However, the site would 
have to be certified. Would the county be 
amenable to paying this cost and supporting 
this process for the long term billing potential?  

Proposals must clearly justify all aspects of the 
budget. That includes additional funding sources.  

Agencies that bill Short-Doyle Medi-Cal are 
aware of which services can and cannot be billed 
for in permanent supportive housing. If a 
provider proposes Drug Medi-Cal, or other 
waiver-based revenue as a source, these funds 
should be identified in the services budget as a 
funding source. The proposal should explain the 
basis for the proposed revenue amount and 
include a feasibility analysis.  

 



5 

Question Response 

15 In Section IVD – the RFP provides a framework 
for on-site medical staffing, which includes a 
“full-time registered nurse, potentially in 
coordination with a Health Worker III or other 
medical assistant, and a part-time 
psychiatrist”. All of the aforementioned 
medical staff cannot bill for services, except 
for the psychiatrist but this would not cover 
the cost of the medical services, which is at 
odds with OCII/HSH’s stated expectation that 
providers will find supplemental funding to 
pay for resident services. Can providers utilize 
a nurse practitioner or physician assistant in 
addition to or instead? This would allow us to 
bill for services.  

The staffing model outlined in the RFP is based 
on best practices from existing San Francisco 
supportive housing sites.  

HSH has a few Direct Access to Housing (DAH) 
sites where a registered nurse (RN) is included in 
the contract. The RNs salary and benefits are 
part of the non-matching general fund funded 
portion of the budget. Only two HSH sites have a 
part time psychiatrist on site. They are only able 
to bill for services that are covered by Medi-Cal, 
at the allowed rate.  

Other DAH sites that have RNs on site utilize DPH 
RNs, which are funded through HSH via a work 
order to DPH.   

DPH DAH attempted nurse practitioner 
(NP)/physician’s assistant (PA) service provision 
for a year and it was determined not to be a 
good fit for the following reasons: 

 A NP/PA may want to work up to their 
license and utilize their skills on a regular 
basis. The salary and benefits for a licensed 
provider are higher. In addition, a NP or PA is 
still not able to bill for everything they 
provide on-site in a permanent supportive 
housing setting. They must provide a billable 
service. Thus, other funding sources will 
need to support at least part of the salary.   

 RNs and health workers provide the services 
that allow many tenants to maintain stability 
in permanent supportive housing, including 
medication adherence and nurse 
management. The latter includes referral to 
and/or follow up with primary care 
providers. This may sometimes include 
arranging for and even accompanying a 
tenant to a specific appointment.  

16 In Section VIC 1 – Our applicant team includes 
two separate development agencies. Can and 
should we each supply three comparable 
projects for a total of six comparable projects?  

Yes, please do provide a set of comparable 
projects for each development agency.  
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17 In Section VIE, Submittal Requirements, there 
is no reference made to the Property 
Management narrative which is referenced on 
page 22. Should we be submitting that 
narrative along with the Attachment #5, and is 
there any guidance on length of that section 
and anything further to address beyond what 
is described on page 22?  

Thanks for pointing this out. OCII will revise the 
RFP submittal requirements to include an 
approach narrative. Please limit this to one page. 
OCII will provide direction regarding specific 
discussion points.   

 

18 In Section VIF 1 – Our applicant team includes 
a behavioral health services (case 
management) provider and a separate 
subcontracted on-site medical provider. Can 
and should we each supply two letters of 
reference?  

Yes, please do provide letters of reference for 
each provider entity.  

 

19 In Section VIF 2 – Our applicant team includes 
a behavioral health services (case 
management) provider and a separate 
subcontracted on-site medical provider. Can 
and should we each supply three comparable 
projects for a total of six comparable projects? 

Yes, please do provide a set of comparable 
projects for each provider.  

 

20 Attachment #9, the Offer to Negotiate 
Exclusively has some blank sections. Will OCII 
be providing a version of this attachment with 
the blanks filled in, or should we write the 
information in by hand before signing and 
including in the proposal submittal? 

Thanks for pointing this out. OCII will provided a 
filled-in version of this agreement to registered 
developer teams along with the final Q & A for 
signature and inclusion in the submittal package. 

 


